UMATILLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 4, 2020, 6:00 PM

Umatilla City Council Chambers, 1 S. Central Avenue, Umatilla, FL
Meetings will be held via Zoom in accordance
with Executive Orders issued by Florida Governor Ron DeSantis

Members of the public may participate by submitting their name, address and comments to the meeting moderator Regina Frazier at rfrazier@umatillafl.org prior to or during the meeting to be read into the record.

Agenda with back up materials is located on the city website at : https://www.umatillafl.org/city-council/agenda/draft-agenda-umatilla-city-council-meeting-august-4-2020
Access to the Zoom meeting is available beginning at 5:45 p.m. by going to Zoom.us using

Access to the Zoom meeting is available beginning at 5:45 p.m. by going to Zoom.us using https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86849705583?pwd=VCt5VVIoTTRtL0VvbTFBOHNzUEpmdz09

Meeting ID: 868 4970 5583, Passcode: 32784. Call in: (301)715-8592

Moment of Silence

Call to Order Roll Call

AGENDA REVIEW

MINUTES REVIEW

1 Minutes, City Council meeting July 21, 2020

PUBLIC COMMENT

Public comment during the Zoom meeting for non-agenda items is limited to emails submitted prior to or during the meeting to meeting moderator Regina Frazier at rfrazier@umatillafl.org Public comment emails must contain the name and address of the person submitting and will be read into the record.

Public comment regarding agenda items will be taken during the time the agenda items are discussed. Please log onto or phone into the Zoom meeting at the address or phone number noted at the top of the agenda.

NEW BUSINESS

2 Airport Ground Lease Agreement - revised

GENERAL DISCUSSION

REPORTS

City Attorney

Crescent Street

Mayor

Council Members

Staff

Police Activity Report – Police Chief Adam Bolton Code Enforcement Report – Officer Misti Lambert Library Report – Director Janet Lewis

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND EVENTS

August 5, 2020

6 PM Budget Workshop, Council Chambers or Zoom

August 7, 2020

2 PM Bids Due, Airport, Hangar Infrastructure Project, Council Chambers

August 18, 2020

6 PM City Council meeting, Council Chambers or Zoom

September 1, 2020

6 PM City Council meeting, Council Chambers or Zoom

September 8, 2020

6 PM Budget Hearings, Council Chambers or Zoom

Tentative Millage and Budget Final Fire Assessment Fee

September 15, 2020

6 PM City Council meeting, Council Chambers or Zoom

September 22, 2020

6 PM Budget Hearings, Council Chambers or Zoom

Adoption of Final Millage and Budget

Adoption of CRA Final Budget

Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in advance of the meeting date and time at (352)669-3125.

F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Council meeting is and shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen to and for the benefit of the Council pursuant to Resolution 2014-43. The views and beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Council and do not necessarily represent their individual religious beliefs, nor are the views or beliefs expressed intended to suggest allegiance to or preference for any particular religion, denomination, faith, creed, or belief by the Council or the City. No person in attendance at this meeting is or shall be required to participate in any invocation and such decision whether or not to participate will have no impact on his or her right to actively participate in the public meeting.

The City of Umatilla is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

| 1 | UMATILLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING |
|----------|--|
| 2 | JULY 21, 2020 6:00 P.M. |
| 3 | MEETING CONDUCTED ON VIDEO CONFERENCING APP ZOOM |
| 4 | |
| 5 | Call to order 6:00 p.m. |
| 6 | |
| 7 | Moment of silence observed. |
| 8 | |
| 9 | PARTICIPANTS: Mayor Eric Olson, Vice Mayor Kent Adcock; Council members Katherine Adams, Brian |
| 10 | Butler, Laura Wright; Police Chief Adam Bolton; Meeting Moderator and Finance Director Regina |
| 11 | Frazier; City Manager Scott Blankenship; City Clerk Karen Howard. |
| 12 | NOT PARTICIPATING: |
| 13 | |
| 14 | The procedure for the Zoom meeting was explained to the participants. |
| 15 | Bull and Manager St. Olang Manager Kant Adapt Connection of Kathaday Adapted British |
| 16 | Roll call: Mayor Eric Olson, Vice Mayor Kent Adcock; Council members Katherine Adams, Brian Butler, |
| 17 | Laura Wright attended via video conference. |
| 18 | A CENIDA DELVIENA |
| 19 | AGENDA REVIEW |
| 20 | MOTION by Adams; SECOND by Wright; to approve Agenda as presented. |
| 21 22 | Roll call vote: |
| 22 23 | Adams – yes; Butler-yes; Wright-yes; Vice Mayor Adcock-yes; Mayor Olson-yes Motion carried. |
| 23 24 | Motion carried. |
| 25 | MINUTES REVIEW |
| 26 | 1 Minutes, City Council meeting July 7, 2020 |
| 27 | 1 Williates, city council meeting saly 7, 2020 |
| 28 | MOTION by Wright; SECOND by Butler; to approve Minutes of the City Council meeting of July 7, 2020. |
| 29 | Roll call vote: |
| 30 | Adams – yes; Butler-yes; Wright-yes; Vice Mayor Adcock-yes; Mayor Olson-yes |
| 31 | Motion carried. |
| 32 | |
| 33 | PUBLIC COMMENT |
| 34 | Meeting Moderator Regina Frazier said there was no public comment. |
| 35 | |
| 36 | PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS |
| 37 | 2 Ordinance 2020-G Donation Bins, second reading |
| 38 | |
| 39 | City Attorney Kevin Stone read the ordinance by title: |
| 40 | |
| 41 | ORDINANCE 2020 – G |
| | |
| 42 | AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 8, |
| 43 | SECTION 1 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA TO CREATE NEW |
| 44 | SUBPARAGRAPH 1(G) ENTITLED "DONATION BINS"; PROVIDING FOR STANDARDS FOR THE LOCATION |
| 45 46 | AND NUMBER OF DONATION BINS WITHIN THE CITY; PROVIDING FOR A PROCEDURE FOR PERMITTING |
| 46 | AND RENEWAL OF TEMPORARY USE PERMITS FOR SUCH BINS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND |
| 47 | PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. |
| 48 | City Manager Scott Blankenship reported other cities have been having issues. This will help to manage |

the issues with bins. It gives us authority to regulate when the bins are unsightly.

49

| 50 51 | MOTION by Wright; SECOND by Adams; to approve Ordinance 2020-G, Donation Bins, second reading. |
|----------------------------|---|
| 52 53 54 | Discussion ensued regarding the grace period that would be allowed for bins that were located within the CRA district or which did not meet the bin requirements. |
| 55 56 57 58 | Attorney Stone noted the ordinance did not address the time frame allowing permitting and recommended the Council include a minor modification to the ordinance with the motion that would be appropriate. When we are talking about zoning we usually allow non-conforming items to continue or to be removed. |
| 60 61 62 | Discussion focused on bins located in the CRA area and Council members indicated they were in favor of not allowing the bins within the CRA district. |
| 63 64 65 66 | Attorney Stone reaffirmed the modification to the ordinance specifying a six-month time period only applies to existing bins. The six month time frame will not prevent us from enforcing things like cleanliness or accumulation of junk outside the bins. The six month time period is only for the permitting process. |
| 67 68 | There was no public comment. |
| 59 70 71 72 | Roll call vote of motion on floor: Adams – no; Butler-no; Wright-no; Vice Mayor Adcock-no; Mayor Eric Olson-no Motion failed. |
| 73 74 75 76 | Motion by Wright; Second by Butler; to adopt Ordinance 2020-G Donation Box Regulations allowing six months for existing donation boxes not in the correct areas and allowing the city the right to control unsightly overspill through the property owner and bin owner. |
| 77 | Roll call vote: |
| 78 79 80 | Adams – yes; Butler-yes; Wright-yes; Vice Mayor Adcock-yes; Mayor Eric Olson Motion carried. |
| 31 32 | 3 Resolution 2020-11 Preliminary Fire Assessment Fee F/Y 2020-2021 |
| 33 34 | City Attorney Kevin Stone read the resolution by title: |
| 85 | RESOLUTION 2020 – 11 |
| 36 37 38 39 90 | A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, RELATING TO THE PROVISION OF FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES, FACILITIES, AND PROGRAMS IN THE CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA; ESTABLISHING THE ESTIMATED RATES FOR FIRE SERVICES ASSESSMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020; DIRECTING THE PREPARATION OF AN ASSESSMENT ROLL; AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC HEARING AND DIRECTING THE PROVISION OF NOTICE THEREOF; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. |
| 92 93 94 | City Manager Blankenship said each year the city must adopt a Preliminary Rate Resolution to initiate the process for updating the assessment roll and directing the reimposition of Fire Services assessments for the upcoming fiscal year beginning October 1 st . |
| 95 96 | This resolution establishes the maximum assessment rate. The rate can be lowered at the Council's direction and adopted in the Final Fire assessment resolution which will come before the Council on |

Minutes, City Council meeting July 21, 2020

97 September 8th. If a reduction is directed by the Council a payback of the funds must be transferred from 98 the city's General Fund to cover the cost of the reduction. 99 The rates as adopted by the Preliminary Resolution are: 100 Residential Dwelling Unit \$142 101 Non residential rates are based on square footage: 102 Commercial is .08 • Industrial/Warehouse is .01 103 104 Institutional is .30 105 Nursing Home is \$1.12 106 107 Fire Services Assessments are not imposed on government property or on buildings or parcels of 108 institutional property whose use is wholly exempt from ad valorem taxation under Florida law. 109 MOTION by Adams; SECOND by Wright; to approve Resolution 2020-11, Preliminary Fire Assessment Fee F/Y 2020-2021. 110 111 112 Discussion focused on determining by the Council during the budget process if there would be a buy 113 down some of the rates and would have to be paid through the Ad Valorem taxes. 114 115 Roll call vote: 116 Adams – yes; Butler-yes; Wright-yes; Vice Mayor Adcock-yes 117 Motion carried. 118 119 **NEW BUSINESS** 120 4 Engineering Proposal, Trowell Avenue Baffle Box 121 122 City Manager Blankenship said the city was awarded a \$150,000 grant by Lake County Water Authority 123 for the installation of a new sediment and nutrient removal box to be located at the south end of Trowell 124 Avenue. 125 126 There is no match required for the construction but the city must pay for the necessary engineering and 127 construction oversight. 128 BESH provided a proposal for \$18,390 which includes surveying, design of baffle box, project bidding and 129 130 construction management. The funding would come from Stormwater Reserves. 131 132 MOTION by Wright; SECOND by Adams; to approve proposal with BESH in the amount of \$18,390. 133 134 No public comment. 135 136 Roll call vote: 137 Adams – yes; Butler-yes; Wright-yes; Vice Mayor Adcock-yes 138 Motion carried. 139 140 **GENERAL DISCUSSION**

Mayor Olson announced the Budget workshops and Special meeting for July 29th to set the proposed

Millage Rate beginning at 6:00 p.m.

141

142

Mayor Olson asked if any records were found to obligate the city to pave Crescent Street. **Attorney Stone** replied nothing had been found.

City Attorney Stone - Crescent Street

Attorney Stone noted there is some effort by Mr. Purvis and his attorney to address this issue.

The document they provided is long and contains legal descriptions and legal boilerplate. The bottom line is the group of neighbors together are proposing to take title to the road, to improve the road, to maintain the road, to pay taxes on the road by splitting the costs equally per capita. The nine property owners would each have one vote and one/ninth of the obligation for maintenance costs and repairs.

In connection with that there would be easements granted back for any utilities that are needed, any stormwater, and access internally for the neighbors for both the owners of the properties and their guests, garbage collection, things like that. It is a straightforward and common arrangement neighbors might enter into.

Mr. Broome asked me if this general big picture idea is acceptable. Or if the city would find it acceptable if a group of less than all the neighbors would enter into the agreement. There is no legal issue.

It requires the consent of the City Council. If the big picture is acceptable, we will have to fix some things with the document that was been provided and we will have to deal with some of the issues with the roadway that meanders outside the 50' strip of land. Not all of the improvements are within the 50' strip of land. I am interested in general feedback for the next Council meeting

Council member Adams stated she believed all the residents on that street should accept it. If one does not accept it I do not think it should go. **Mr. Purvis** only owns a little driveway. The majority of the other people own a lot more on the roadway. I am still questioning the property the city bought in 2000 that goes up to **Mike Straughan's** property. The city paid \$10,000; are we just going to turn around and give it back to **Mr. Straughan?** That is very questionable to me and that needs to be resolved.

Vice Mayor Adcock asked if the agreement includes all the hold harmless clauses that would render the city exempt from liability in the event this moves forward. If fewer than all the people participate, what would happen in the event one of the individuals sold to another party and then the easement was withheld that would allow people to cross the property?

Att 177 follo

Attorney Stone responded cross access easements come up a lot in real estate transactions. They usually follow the property. If any of the property, owners sold their property it would come along with the right to continue using the easement. No property owner would be able to take away the right of another property owner. If there was a change in rights it would require the consent of anyone whose rights would be changed or diminished.

181 Regarding the question of hold harmless, this would not be the city's property anymore so that would not be an issue.

be an issue

Council member Wright asked if we are trying to move forward with the neighbors on resolving this?

Attorney Stone explained the document would give the property to the neighbors. This is a proposal from

Mr. Purvis and I am checking with the Council to determine if the directing they are moving in is palatable
to the Council. If there are issues now is the time to tell me so I can go back to Mr. Purvis's lawyer and
let them know they need to think about doing something different.

- 188 Attorney Stone said from a legal perspective this is an appropriate resolution and the model that has been
- 189 proposed by Mr. Purvis is one that has been used before in many places where neighbors take a
- 190 proportionate share of common area and agree to maintain them, splitting the costs among themselves.
- 191 **Council member Adams** said she felt they should all agree on the easement.
- 192 Attorney Stone said when he spoke with Mr. Broome he indicated there might be some of these nine
- 193 neighbors that do not want to do this deal because they will have to start paying taxes on new land. They
- 194 will have new liabilities on the new land they own and they might not want to participate by paying into
- 195 those things. The neighbors would still get the benefits but would not be participating in the costs.
- 196 The neighbors that do sign up would have a proportionately higher cost. I got the impression that Mr.
- 197 Purvis and Mr. Straughan would be willing to pick up those costs and the other neighbors not have to
- 198 contribute to the taxes.
- 199 One of the concerns after the unauthorized paving was the additional cost of maintenance and an
- 200 agreement would shift the burden from the city to the group of neighbors who take over the road.
- 201 Vice Mayor Adcock asked if the neighbors who did not sign on became disgruntled in the future what is
- 202 their recourse?

203 204

- Attorney Stone responded the neighbors would still have the rights under the form of easement;
- 205 maintenance could be performed. They would still have a vote and the others would have to pay their
- 206 share, but they would not have the title related costs.

207

Council member Butler did not have an issue with fewer than nine neighbors participating.

208 209 210

- Council member Adams still questioned the \$10,000 the city paid Mr. Straughan and did not feel it was
- 211 fair to give the property back to him.

212

- 213 Attorney Stone said no one has offered to pay any money in connection with this proposal. Mr. Stone
- 214 said he would recommend the city keep the easements for utilities and maintain the rights that are
- 215 needed for maintenance activities.

216 217

- Council member Adams maintained all the people should enter into the agreement and accept the
- 218 easement or not accept the agreement.

219

220 Mayor Olson agreed.

221

- 222 Council member Butler said as long as the city gets the easement for what we need and the city is no 223
 - longer responsible for the road. I say let them take it over.

224 225

- Mayor Olson said we should require them to pay our City Attorney and staff time and any other time for
- 226 causing this situation.

227

228 **Council member Adams** said what about the \$10,000 from **Mike Straughan**?

229

230 Council member Butler responded we are still getting our easement out of it. If they want to accept it 231 and pay for it, it is on them.

232

expressed concerns that if in the future some of the neighbors get disgruntled will they say the city sold them out? After much discussion, the Council instructed Mr. Stone to relay they wanted all the people on the road to participate in the agreement, the repayment of the \$10,000 from Mr. Straughan, plus the attorney and staff fees. Mr. Stone said he had a sense of what the Council wanted him to relay. Council member Adams thanked the Library for their efforts, EMS, and the public safety services. Meeting adjourned 6:56 p.m. Eric Olson Mayor ATTEST: Karen H. Howard, MMC City Clerk

Vice Mayor Adcock said he agreed with Mr. Butler and felt it was a reasonable resolution. He still

CITY OF UMATILLA AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT

DATE: July 30, 2020 MEETING DATE: August 4, 2020

SUBJECT: Airport

ISSUE: Ground Lease Agreement

BACKGROUND SUMMARY: A proposed agreement between the city and John Matusik was reviewed and approved by the Council during the April 21, 2020 meeting. Attorney Stone indicated that if there substantial changes to the draft lease it would be brought back to the Council for final approval.

Changes to note:

Agreement is between the City and Fly Umatilla Hangar, LLC

- I. <u>GROUND LEASE</u>, B Purpose of Agreement City approval and permitting of hangar is a condition of the agreement and allows the tenant to make subsequent improvements without the city's permission as long as it meets applicable standards and laws. If city does not approve hangar or tenant is unable to build because of a refusal or failure to act by the city the agreement shall be terminated.
- III. <u>TERM</u> Agreement term is changed from 35 years to 50 years through the year 2070 with two additional five year periods. Within 90 days for the final renewal period an extension shall be negotiated if tenant desires to renew contract.

City may terminate the tenancy effective anytime after August 31, 2050 by providing a written notice to the tenant at least two years prior to the buyout date. There is a formula for determining the appraised value of the hangar and improvements and verbiage outlining the steps if the parties fail to reach an agreement on the appraised value.

- IV. <u>USE OF PREMISES, K</u> Operations and Personnel Programs tenant are called to participate in are identified as safety, security and operations programs.
- VIII. <u>ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASING</u>, A Assignment by Tenant; Lessor's Option to Repurchase Adds improvements to the items for which an appraisal must be obtained.

- DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION, AND CONDEMNATION. A Damage or Destruction of IX. Premises. Changes verbiage from may to shall abate the tenant's rent until if damaged premises are substantially completed and tenant does not have business interruption insurance.
- XI. EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT A. Disposition of Tenant's Improvements ii-

The tenant shall pay annual rent to the city in the amount of \$1,380 to be increased each year based on the CPI-U for the preceding year. The term of the agreement shall be for 35 years with two 5 years additional periods.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval with the exception of the changes under IX, Damage or Destruction of Premises.

| FISCAL IMPACTS: Annua the previous year. | Annual lease of \$1,380 to be adjusted annually according to the CPI-U for | | | | |
|--|--|-----|------|--|--|
| COUNCIL ACTION: | | | | | |
| Reviewed by City Attorney | √Yes | □No | □N/A | | |
| Reviewed by City Engineer | □Yes | □No | √N/A | | |

AIRPORT GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA

AND

JOHN MATUSIKFLY UMATILLA HANGAR, LLC

THIS AIRPORT GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation, which shall be called the "Lessor" in this Agreement, and JOHN J. MATUSIKFLY UMATILLA HANGAR, LLC, a Florida resident limited liability company, the "Tenant" in this Agreement and whose mailing address is _______, for a hangar site at the City of Umatilla Municipal Airport ("Airport").

In consideration of the mutual terms and conditions contained in this Agreement and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

I. GROUND LEASE

- A. **Agreement to Lease Premises**. Lessor hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant hereby leases from Lessor the Airport hangar site more particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the "Premises") for the purposes set forth in this Agreement. Tenant agrees to accept the Premises "as is," and Lessor makes no warranty as to the condition of the Premises or their suitability for any particular purpose.
- B. Purpose of Agreement. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Tenant will, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, perform any necessary site work and construct and maintain a hangar of good commercial quality at least 2000 square feet in size, together with other aviation-related improvements on the Premises for the purpose of storing and maintaining aircraft, including improvements desired by Tenant for aircraft parking, storage, and maintenance, and flight instruction pursuant to Federal Aviation Administration standards and all applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations. Tenant may make such further ancillary improvements beyond the foregoing within Tenant's hangar that Tenant so desires, so long as such improvements are done pursuant to Federal Aviation Administration standards and all applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations. Tenant shall not make or cause to be made to the Premises any alteration or improvement without Lessor's prior written consent (in Lessor's sole discretion). Lessor's approval and permitting of Tenant's hangar is a condition precedent to the effectiveness of this Agreement. If Lessor does not approve Tenant's hangar, or Tenant is otherwise unable to build Tenant's hangar due to a refusal or failure to act by Lessor, this Agreement shall be terminated and of no further force and effect. Tenant shall not alter or improve any area of the Airport that is not leased by Tenant. Construction shall be

- subject to the approval of the Lessor. The hangar shall be designed and painted a color to complement other hangars on the Airport property. Hangar construction shall be completed within 120 days of its commencement.
- C. **Title to Improvements**. During the term of this Agreement, all portions of the hangar and any other improvements that are constructed or acquired by Tenant shall be and remain the personal property of the Tenant. Upon termination of this Agreement after all renewals provided for in this Agreement and as may be extended by the mutual agreement of the parties or their successors and assigns, title to improvements will be transferred to Lessor.
- D. Access. Lessor agrees that if Tenant is not in breach of this Agreement, Tenant and Tenant's employees, officers, directors, subtenants (that are approved by Lessor pursuant to this Agreement), contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, agents, invitees, and other representatives ("Tenant's Associates") are authorized to ingress and egress across the common areas of the Airport (in the areas designated by Lessor, for the purposes for which they were designed, and as permitted by applicable laws and regulations) on a non-exclusive basis and to the extent reasonably necessary for Tenant's use, occupancy, and operations at the Premises.
- E. **Right of Flight and Other Reserved Rights.** This Agreement conveys only a leasehold interest in the Premises on the terms and for the purposes provided herein, and it conveys no other rights, title, or interests of any kind. Among the rights reserved to Lessor, Lessor reserves in the Premises a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the air, a right to cause such noise as may at any time be inherent in the operation of aircraft, and all other rights, including, but not limited to, water, minerals, oil, and gas.

II. RENT AND PAYMENT

- **A.** Amount Due. Tenant covenants to pay annual rent to Lessor for Tenant's lease of the Premises in the amount of One Thousand Three Hundred Eighty Dollars and NO/100 (\$1,380.00) commencing on the Commencement Date. Lessor and Tenant agree that Tenant's annual rent shall increase each year (or fraction of a year) when this Agreement is in effect by a percentage not exceeding the 12-month percentage change in the CPI-U All Urban Consumers index published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics for the preceding calendar year. Once timely paid, annual prepaid rent shall not be adjustable and shall be considered rent paid in full for the annual period. The rent for any fraction of a year shall be prorated.
- **B.** When Due. Annual rent payments shall be payable in advance and due on or before July 1st of each year during the term of this Agreement.
- C. Payments. Any amount due in connection with this Agreement or the use of the Airport shall be due without prior notice or demand, except when notice is necessary to make Tenant aware of an amount due, and shall be paid without offset, abatement, or deduction. Lessor shall first apply any sum paid to past due rent (beginning with the most recent amount due). No statement on any check or elsewhere shall be deemed to create an accord and satisfaction. Lessor may accept any payment (including, but not limited to, past due amounts and related charges) without prejudice to Lessor's rights to recover any sum or pursue other remedies provided by this Agreement or by law and without waiving any default under this Agreement. If any check paid on behalf of Tenant is dishonored by a bank, Tenant shall pay all charges that the bank may assess to Lessor plus a service charge of Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) per occurrence. If Lessor

pays any amount on behalf of Tenant (including, but not limited to, civil penalties assessed in connection with Tenant's use of the Airport), such amount shall constitute an advance by Lessor to Tenant and Tenant shall promptly reimburse Lessor upon demand by Lessor. Lessor has the right to apply any sum paid by Tenant to any obligation that Tenant owes to Lessor (whether or not in connection with this Agreement). Tenant shall make payments to Lessor at the following address (or such other address as Lessor may designate in writing from time to time):

City of Umatilla Attn: Airport Manager P.O. Box 2286 Umatilla, FL 32784

- **D. Past Due Payments.** If Tenant fails to pay when due any amount required to be paid by Tenant under this Agreement, such unpaid amount shall bear interest at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum from the due date of such amount to the date of payment in full, with interest. In addition, Lessor may also charge a sum of five percent (5%) of such unpaid amount as a service fee, which the parties agree is a reasonable estimate of and liquidated damages for Lessor's additional costs for billing and collection arising from Tenant's failure to make payment in a timely manner.
- **E.** Additional Costs Not Included in Rent. Any sum other than rent as required by this Agreement that Tenant is obligated to pay to Lessor arising from or relating to this Agreement or Tenant's use, occupancy, or operations at the Airport constitutes additional costs not included in rent, which may include, but is not limited to, fees, fuel flowage fees for self-fueling activities (at the rate and on the terms imposed by Lessor), fines, civil penalties, damages, claims, interest, charges, permitting fees, impact fees and utility charges.

III. TERM

- A. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of Thirty-FiveFifty (5035) years commencing on ______September 1, 2020 (the "Commencement Date") and ending on ______August 31, 2070 ("Expiration Date") (such period being the "Initial Term").
- **B.** Renewal. If this Agreement has not been terminated as provided herein, effective prior to or at the end of the Initial Term. Tenant may renew this Agreement for two (2) additional periods of Five (5) years if Tenant is not in breach of this Agreement and delivers a written notice of renewal to Lessor at least ninety (90) days before the expiration of the Initial Term or the first renewal term. After any such renewal, Lessor, in its sole discretion, may determine to permit any subsequent extensions of this Agreement on terms offered by Lessor when agreed to by both parties in writing.
- B. Renewal in accordance with right of first refusal. Within ninety (90) days of the final renewal period established in this Agreement, Tenant shall give Lessor written notice if Tenant desires to renew this Agreement. If Tenant desires such renewal, and if Lessor is offering or intends to offer the Premises for lease as an airplane hangar, Lessor and Tenant shall negotiate

terms of the extension in good faith. shall offer the Premises to Tenant first for (i) the same amount of rent and for the same term that Lessor is proposing to offer the Premises or (ii) the same amount of rent and for the same term that Lessor has most recently leased a ground lease at the airport, whichever is less.

<u>C.</u>

D. Termination by Lessor Buyout. Lessor may terminate the tenancy under this Agreement, whether during the Initial Term or any renewal term, effective any time after August 31, 2050 (i.e., after the 30th year of the tenancy). The effective date of the termination (the "Buyout Date") shall be established in a written notice delivered to Tenant at least 2 years prior to the Buyout Date. If the Lessor terminates the Agreement under this paragraph, then on the Buyout Date Lessor shall pay the Tenant a percentage of the appraised value of the hangar and other improvements located on the Premises. The percentage of the appraised value to be paid on the Buyout Date shall be 100% minus 2% per year for each full year which has elapsed between the Commencement Date and the Buyout Date, provided, however, that the amount to be paid on the Buyout Date shall not be less than \$1,000.00.

The appraised value shall be determined as follows: The Lessor shall obtain an appraisal of the hangar and other improvements at its expense from a professional appraiser with appropriate industry qualifications and experience in appraising airport facilities. The Lessor's appraisal shall be delivered to the Tenant at least 6 months prior to the Buyout Date. If the Tenant accepts the Lessor's appraisal, then the Lessor's appraisal shall establish the appraised value. If the Tenant objects to the Lessor appraisal, it may obtain and deliver to Lessor its own appraisal at least 4 months prior to the Buyout Date. If, after the delivery of the Tenant's appraisal, the parties fail to reach a written agreement on the appraised value at least 90 days prior to the Buyout Date, the two appraisals may be submitted to an arbitrator pursuant to the rules and procedures of the American Arbitration Association (AAA) who shall choose one of the two submitted appraisals to be the appraised value.

C.

IV. <u>USE OF PREMISES</u>

- A. Compliance with Laws. Tenant and Tenant's Associates shall comply at all times and at Tenant's sole cost with any and all laws and regulations (as amended or otherwise modified from time to time) that are applicable to Tenant's use, occupancy, or operations at the Premises or the Airport, which include, but are not limited to, all laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations, rules, orders, writs, judgments, decrees, injunctions, directives, rulings, guidelines, standards, codes, ordinances, and other pronouncements of any kind having the effect of law including, but not limited to, Umatilla Airport rules and regulations, City of Umatilla ordinances and land development regulations, Federal Aviation Administration rules and guidelines, Florida Department of Transportation rules and guidelines, and state and federal environmental laws. Upon a written request by Lessor, Tenant will verify, within a reasonable time frame, compliance with any Laws and Regulations.
- **B.** Unauthorized Uses. Tenant and Tenant's Associates shall use the Premises and the Airport only for purposes that are expressly authorized by this Agreement and shall not engage in any

unauthorized use of the same. Unauthorized uses include, but are not limited to, damaging, interfering with, or altering any improvement; restricting access on any road or other area that Tenant does not lease; placing waste materials on the Airport or disposing of such materials in violation of any laws and regulations; any use that would constitute a public or private nuisance or a disturbance or annoyance to other Airport users; driving a motor vehicle in a prohibited Airport location; the use of automobile parking areas in a manner not authorized by Lessor; the storage of fuel in excess of 20 gallons (except that Tenant may store fuel on the Premises in engine-driven equipment with regular built-in fuel tanks such as aircraft fuel tanks or automobile fuel tanks); any use that would interfere with any operation at the Airport or decrease the Airport's effectiveness (as determined by Lessor in its sole discretion); the storage, possession or maintenance of any jet aircraft; and any use that would be prohibited by or would impair coverage under either party's insurance policies.

- C. Permits and Licenses. Tenant shall obtain and maintain in current status all permits and licenses that are required under any Laws and Regulations in connection with Tenant's use, occupancy, or operations at the Premises or the Airport. In the event that Tenant receives notice from any governmental entity that Tenant lacks, or is in violation of, any such permit or license, Tenant shall provide Lessor with timely written notice of the same.
- D. Taxes and Liens. Tenant shall pay (before their respective due dates) all taxes, fees, assessments, and levies that relate to Tenant's use, occupancy, or operations at the Premises or the Airport and all other obligations for which a lien may be created relating thereto (including, but not limited to, utility charges and work for any improvements). Within thirty (30) days, Tenant shall remove any such lien that may be created or commence a protest of such lien by depositing with Lessor cash or other security acceptable to Lessor in an amount sufficient to cover the cost of removing such lien. When contracting for any work in connection with the Premises, Tenant shall include in such contract a provision prohibiting the contractor or any subcontractor or supplier from filing a lien or asserting a claim against Lessor's real property or any interest therein.
- E. Encumbrances. Tenant shall not encumber or permit the encumbrance of any real property at the Airport. Tenant shall not encumber or permit the encumbrance of any of Tenant's rights under this Agreement without Lessor's prior written consent, in Lessor's sole discretion. Any purported encumbrance of rights in violation of this Section is void. In connection with Lessor's consent to any encumbrance, at a minimum the following shall apply: (i) such encumbrance shall only encumber Tenant's leasehold interest for the purpose of securing financing for Tenant's authorized improvements (no other encumbrance shall be permitted); (ii) such encumbrance shall be subordinate to Lessor's interests; (iii) the lienholder must agree to maintain current contact information with Lessor and provide Lessor with concurrent copies of any notices or communications regarding a default; (iv) the lienholder must certify to Lessor that it has reviewed this Agreement and accepted provisions that may affect the lienholder, and that no loan requirements conflict with or materially erode any provisions of this Agreement; (v) any default relating to such encumbrance shall be a default of this Agreement; (vi) the lienholder must agree that upon any default, Lessor shall have a lien with first priority on all Tenant-owned improvements and other property at the Premises; and (vii) such encumbrance shall terminate prior to the expiration date and the lienholder must agree to promptly remove such encumbrance when the obligation that it secures has been satisfied. Lessor shall have no

- obligation to provide any notices to any lienholder, and Lessor shall have no liability of any kind to any lienholder.
- F. Damage to Property and Notice of Harm. In addition to Tenant's indemnification obligations set forth in this Agreement, Tenant, at Tenant's sole cost, shall repair or replace (to Lessor's reasonable satisfaction) any damaged property that belongs to Lessor or Lessor's other tenants to the extent that such damage arises from or relates to an act or omission of Tenant or Tenant's Associates. Tenant shall promptly notify Lessor of any such property damage. If Tenant discovers any other potential claims or losses that may affect Lessor, Tenant shall promptly notify Lessor of the same.
- G. **Signage and Advertising.** Tenant is not authorized to install or operate any signage outside of enclosed structures on the Premises (other than a hangar number or other markings for identification authorized or required by the Lessor), or at the Airport, except with the prior written approval of Lessor (which may be given or withheld in Lessor's sole discretion). Any approved signage shall be at Tenant's expense and shall comply with laws and regulations (including, but not limited to, Airport signage policies and standards and the City of Umatilla's code of ordinances, land development regulations, and permit requirements).
- H. Security. Tenant is responsible to comply (at Tenant's sole cost) with all security measures that Lessor, the United States Transportation Security Administration, or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction may require in connection with the Airport, including, but not limited to, any access credential requirements, any decision to remove Tenant's access credentials, and any civil penalty obligations and other costs arising from a breach of security requirements caused or permitted by Tenant or Tenant's Associates. Tenant agrees that Airport access credentials are the property of Lessor and may be suspended or revoked by Lessor in its sole discretion at any time. Tenant shall pay all fees associated with such credentials, and Tenant shall immediately report to the Airport Manager any lost credentials or credentials that Tenant removes from any employee or any of Tenant's Associates. Tenant shall protect and preserve security at the Airport.
- I. Removal of Disabled Aircraft. When consistent with laws and regulations, Tenant shall promptly remove or cause to be removed from any portion of the Airport not leased by Tenant any aircraft that Tenant owns or controls if it becomes disabled. Tenant may store such aircraft within Tenant's enclosed improvements or, with Lessor's prior written consent, elsewhere at the Airport on terms and conditions established by Lessor. If Tenant fails to comply with this requirement after a written request by Lessor to comply, Lessor may (but is not required to) cause the removal of any such aircraft at Tenant's expense by any means that Lessor determines, in its sole discretion, to be in Lessor's best interests.
- J. Maintenance, Repair, Utilities, and Storage. Tenant's use, occupancy, and operations at the Premises shall be without cost or expense to Lessor. Tenant shall be solely responsible to design and construct all improvements and to maintain, repair, reconstruct, and operate the Premises and all improvements at Tenant's sole cost and expense, including, but not limited to, all charges for utility services (and their installation and maintenance), janitorial services, waste disposal, and ramp repair. Tenant shall at all times maintain the Premises and all improvements in a condition that is equal to the level of maintenance by Lessor in comparable areas and that is clean, free of debris, safe, sanitary, and in good repair. Tenant shall perform all work in accordance with Laws and Regulations and in a good and workmanlike manner.

Tenant shall promptly remedy any condition that fails to meet this standard. Without limiting the foregoing obligations, Tenant shall not store on the Premises any inoperable equipment, discarded or unsightly materials, or materials likely to create a hazard; shall not use areas outside of enclosed buildings for storage; and shall store trash in covered metal receptacles. Any substance or material that is regulated by any environmental law or regulation ("Hazardous Materials") shall be governed by Section VII of this Agreement.

K. Operations and Personnel. Tenant shall occupy the Premises at all times and shall operate in a manner that promotes effective airport operations. Among other things, Tenant shall use its best efforts to immediately notify the Airport Manager of any condition that Tenant observes at the Airport that may create a hazard or disruption, shall promptly remedy deficiencies in Tenant's operations, and shall promptly respond to Lessor's complaints, requests for information, and requests for reasonable assistance in connection with planning and other operational matters at the Airport. Tenant shall refrain from annoying, disturbing, or impairing Airport customers, tenants, or employees, and Tenant shall control the conduct, demeanor, and appearance of Tenant's employees and Tenant's Associates to prevent them from doing so. If Lessor, the City of Umatilla, or Lake County, or the State of Florida, for good and sufficient cause, deems any of Tenant's employees or Tenant's associates to be objectionable, Tenant shall take all steps necessary to remove such persons from the Airport. Tenant's employees shall possess adequate training and qualifications to carry out their assigned duties. If Lessor determines for any reason that emergency conditions exist at the Airport, Tenant shall participate in any emergency response as directed by Lessor or other agency in charge and shall operate in a manner that protects safety and the interests of the public. Lessor may, but is not obligated to, stop Tenant's operations if safety laws and regulations or other safe work practices are not being observed. Tenant shall participate in and cooperate with the lawful, reasonable, and nondiscriminatory safety, security, and operations programs implemented by Lessor and generally applicable to hangar occupants, including, but not limited to, programs addressing common areas; services provided for use by multiple tenants; programs to implement cost efficiencies and economies of scale; and security-related measures. [ZB1]

V. <u>LESSOR'S AUTHORITY</u>

- **A.** Nature of Lessor. Lessor is a governmental entity and the proprietor of the Airport, and Lessor has all lawful rights, powers, and privileges to act in those capacities.
- **B.** Access to Premises. Lessor for itself and its employees, officers, directors, agents, contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, invitees, volunteers and other representatives ("Lessor's Associates") reserves the right to enter the Premises as provided in this Section, and the same does not constitute a trespass upon the Premises or a violation of any rights. Lessor and Lessor's Associates shall have the right to enter the Premises (except the interior of any building) at any time and without prior notice. Lessor and Lessor's Associates shall have the right to enter the interior of any building on the Premises at any time and without prior notice for any purpose relating to any emergency, security, or safety concern, or to investigate or remediate potential threats or hazards. Lessor and Lessor's Associates shall have right to enter the interior of any building on the Premises for any other purpose relating to the Airport (including, but not limited to, in order to conduct any inspections, determine compliance with this Agreement, and conduct Airport work) upon providing reasonable notice to Tenant.

Tenant agrees that Lessor may discuss with Tenant's employees any matters pertinent to Tenant's use, occupancy, or operations at the Premises and the Airport.

- C. Lessor's Right to Work Within, Alter, or Recover Premises. Lessor has the right at the Airport to perform or cause to be performed any work (including, but not limited to, constructing improvements, surveying, performing environmental testing, removing any hazard or obstruction, and implementing any plan, program, or action), that Lessor (in its sole discretion) determines to be in Lessor's best interests, including, but not limited to, within the Premises. Lessor has the right to recover all or any portion of the Premises from Tenant in connection with any such work as Lessor may determine in its sole discretion. If Lessor determines to recover all or any portion of the Premises, Lessor shall provide Tenant with ninety (90) days prior written notice specifying what areas will be recovered. If any portion remaining after such recovery is not tenantable in light of the purposes of this Agreement (as determined by Lessor in its sole discretion), Lessor, in its sole discretion, shall either:
 - i. Purchase the Tenant-owned improvements on the Premises and terminate this Agreement for convenience. In connection with any such purchase and termination, Lessor shall pay only the following amount: the remaining value of such Tenant-owned improvements (so long as such improvements are not in breach of this Agreement), which shall be determined as provided in this Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate at the time specified by Lessor in writing. OR:
 - ii. Relocate such Tenant-owned improvements to another location on the Airport that is determined by Lessor. In connection with any such relocation, Lessor shall pay the reasonable costs to relocate such improvements (so long as they are not in breach of this Agreement), and the parties agree that they shall amend this Agreement to substitute such new location as the Premises herein.
 - iii. Nothing under this Section shall be construed to waive Lessor's right to pursue any remedy for a breach of this Agreement arising from or relating to Tenant's use, occupancy, or operations at any portion of the Premises or at the Airport.

VI. LIABILITY AND INSURANCE

A. Indemnity by Tenant. Tenant agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Lessor and its officers, agents, and employees from and against losses of every kind and character (including, but not limited to, liabilities, causes of action, losses, claims, costs, fees, attorney fees, expert fees, court or dispute resolution costs, investigation costs, environmental claims, mitigation costs, judgments, settlements, fines, demands, damages, charges, and expenses) that arise out of or relate to: (i) any use, occupancy, or operations at the Premises or the Airport by Tenant or Tenant's Associates; or (ii) any wrongful, reckless, or negligent act or omission of Tenant or Tenant's Associates. Tenant shall use attorneys, experts, and professionals that are reasonably acceptable to Lessor in carrying out this obligation. The obligation stated in this Section shall survive the expiration or other termination of this Agreement with respect to matters arising before such expiration or other termination. These duties shall apply whether or not the allegations made are found to be true.

- B. Waiver of Liability and Assumption of Risk. Tenant assumes all risk of the use of the Premises and the Airport, and Tenant hereby knowingly, voluntarily, and intentionally waives any and all losses, liabilities, claims, and causes of action, of every kind and character, that may exist now or in the future (including, but not limited to, claims for business interruption and for damage to any aircraft) against Lessor and its officers, employees, and volunteers arising from or relating to Tenant's use, occupancy, or operations at the Premises or the Airport.
- C. **Insurance.** At Tenant's cost, Tenant shall procure the following insurance coverage prior to entering the Premises, and Tenant shall maintain its insurance coverage in force at all times when this Agreement is in effect in compliance with and subject to Lessor's insurance requirements as they exist from time to time.
 - i. Aviation Liability with Additional Coverage. Aviation liability insurance that includes premises liability, and, if applicable, mobile equipment coverage with a combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of not less than two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence, including, but not limited to, contractual liability coverage for Tenant's performance of the indemnity agreement set forth in this Agreement. If any such coverage is not available to Tenant in the form of an aircraft liability policy, Tenant shall obtain substantially similar coverage through a commercial general liability policy.
 - ii. Property. All risk property insurance coverage in an amount equal to the replacement cost (without deduction for depreciation) of the improvements constructed on the Premises. Tenant may purchase insurance for Tenant's personal property as Tenant may determine.
 - iii. Automobile. If Tenant drives any automobile other than in the roadways and automobile parking areas at the Airport (e.g. Aircraft Movement Area), comprehensive automobile liability coverage for claims and damage due to bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of Tenant's ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicles, whether owned, hired, or non-owned, of not less than five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000) single combined limit "per accident" for bodily injury and property damage.
 - iv. Pollution. Tenant is responsible for environmental losses. Any pollution legal liability insurance obtained by Tenant shall comply with the requirements for insurance that are stated in this Agreement. If Tenant engages in self-fueling, Tenant shall comply with Lessor's self-fueling requirements, including, but not limited to, any pollution legal liability insurance requirements.
 - v. Aircraft. Tenant is responsible for any damage or loss to its Aircraft. Tenant shall obtain insurance coverage for the Aircraft as Tenant may determine.
 - vi. Business Interruption. Tenant is responsible for all costs of business interruption, however incurred, and Tenant may purchase business interruption insurance as Tenant may determine.

VII. <u>HAZARDOUS MATERIALS</u>

- A. **No Violation of Environmental Laws.** Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be used, produced, stored, transported, brought upon, or released on, under, or about the Premises or the Airport by Tenant or Tenant's Associates in violation of applicable Environmental Laws.
- B. Response to Violations. Tenant agrees that in the event of a release or threat of release of any hazardous material by Tenant or Tenant's Associates at the Airport, Tenant shall provide Lessor with prompt notice of the same. Tenant shall respond to any such release or threat of release in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. If Lessor has reasonable cause to believe that any such release or threat of release has occurred, Lessor may request, in writing, that Tenant conduct reasonable testing and analysis (using qualified independent experts acceptable to Lessor) to show that Tenant is complying with applicable environmental laws. Lessor may conduct the same at Tenant's expense if Tenant fails to respond in a reasonable manner. Tenant shall cease any or all of Tenant's activities as Lessor determines necessary, in its sole and absolute discretion, in connection with any investigation, cure, or remediation. If Tenant or Tenant's Associates violate any environmental laws at the Airport (whether due to the release of a hazardous material or otherwise), Tenant, at Tenant's expense, shall have the following obligations, which shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement: (i) promptly remediate such violation in compliance with applicable environmental laws; (ii) submit to Lessor a written remediation plan, and Lessor reserves the right to approve such plan (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld) and to review and inspect all work; (iii) work with Lessor and other governmental authorities having jurisdiction in connection with any violation; and (iv) promptly provide to Lessor copies of all documents pertaining to any environmental concern that are not subject to Tenant's attorney-client privilege.
- C. Obligations upon Termination. Upon any expiration or termination of this Agreement, or upon any change in possession of the Premises as authorized by Lessor, Tenant shall demonstrate to Lessor's reasonable satisfaction that Tenant has removed any hazardous materials and is in compliance with all applicable environmental laws and regulations. Such demonstration may include, but is not limited to, independent analysis and testing to the extent that facts and circumstances warrant analysis and testing, such as evidence of past violations or specific uses of the premises.

VIII. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASING

A. Assignment by Tenant; Lessor's Option to Repurchase.

a. Tenant may not assign any of its rights under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, rights in any improvements, unless it has first provided Lessor with written notice of its intent to assign such rights (the "Notice of Assignment"). Upon the receipt of the notice, Lessor shall have 45 days to obtain an appraisal of the value of the leasehold interest hereunder and improvements thereon (the "Appraisal Amount") and provide notice to the Tenant that it intends to terminate the tenancy under this Agreement and acquire the improvements by paying the Appraisal Amount. If Lessor does not provide written notice of its intent to terminate the tenancy hereunder and acquire the improvements, or provides written notice that it has waived its right to do so, Tenant shall have 6 months to assign such rights pursuant to the provisions of subparagraph

- (b) below. After 6 months, any proposed assignment shall be prohibited unless the Tenant again complies with the provisions of this subparagraph (a). If Lessor does provide notice of its intent to terminate the tenancy hereunder and acquire the improvements, then the closing shall occur within a reasonable time and the Tenant shall surrender the premises as hereinafter provided upon receipt of the Appraisal Amount in cash.
- b. Subject to the restrictions in subparagraph (a), Tenant may assign any of its rights under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, rights in any improvements, (whether such assignment is voluntarily or involuntarily, by merger, consolidation, dissolution, change in control, or any other manner), or delegate any performance under this Agreement, only with the prior written consent of Lessor to any of the same. Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold such consent, and as a condition of obtaining such consent, the transferee receiving any such right shall be required to execute a new lease agreement provided by Lessor. Regardless of Lessor's consent, Tenant shall not be released from any obligations for matters arising during the time when this Agreement was in effect. Any purported assignment or delegation of rights or delegation of performance in violation of this Section is void.
- B. **Assignment by Lessor.** Lessor shall have the right, in Lessor's sole discretion, to assign any of its rights under this Agreement (and in connection therewith, shall be deemed to have delegate its duties), and upon any such assignment, Tenant agrees that Tenant shall perform its obligations under this Agreement in favor of such assignee.
- C. Sublease. Upon obtaining Lessor's prior written consent, which Lessor may provide or withhold in Lessor's sole discretion, Tenant shall have the right to sublease portions of the Premises for the storage of Aircraft in the areas approved by and subject to the terms required by Lessor. Tenant shall impose on all approved subtenants the same terms set forth in this Agreement to provide for the rights and protections afforded to Lessor hereunder. Tenant shall reserve the right to amend Tenant's subleases to conform to the requirements of this Agreement, and all such subleases shall be consistent with and subordinate to this Agreement as it is amended from time to time. Such subleases shall include an agreement that the sublessees will attorn to and pay rent to Lessor if Tenant ceases to be a party to this Agreement. Lessor shall have the right to approve any sublease in Lessor's sole discretion, and Tenant shall provide to Lessor a copy of every sublease executed by Tenant (which shall include the make, model, and identification number of all Aircraft making use of such space). No sublease shall relieve Tenant of any obligation under this Agreement.

VIII. DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION, AND CONDEMNATION

A. **Damage or Destruction of Premises.** If any portion of the Premises or the improvements on the Premises is damaged in any manner, Tenant shall promptly remove from the Airport all debris and cause repairs to be made to restore the same to an orderly and safe condition. All work shall be performed in accordance with plans and specifications that are approved by Lessor as being consistent with or better than the original improvements. Tenant shall apply all proceeds that are made available from Tenant's insurance policies (or those of any subtenant or assignee) to performing such work. If Lessor performs such work, insurance proceeds shall be paid to Lessor. If the Premises or any improvement on the Premises are tenantable despite

- such damage, Tenant shall not receive any abatement of Tenant's rent obligations. To the extent that any portion is rendered untenantable by such damage in light of the purposes of this Agreement (as determined by Lessor in its sole discretion), rent shall continue if Tenant has business interruption insurance, or if Tenant does not have such insurance, Lessor may shall abate Tenant's rent proportionately until repairs have been substantially completed—(as determined by Lessor in its sole discretion).
- B. Condemnation. In the event of any condemnation proceeding in which all or any part of the Premises is taken (by a condemnor other than Lessor), all compensation from such proceeding shall be paid to Lessor, except that Tenant may pursue a claim against the condemnor for the value of the improvements on the Premises that are owned by Tenant and Tenant's leasehold interest, and any subtenants may pursue a claim against the condemnor for the value of their subtenancy interests. In the event of a partial taking, Lessor shall reduce the ground rent payable by Tenant on a pro rata basis for portions of the Premises so taken. If Lessor determines in its sole discretion that all or a material portion of the Premises will be (or has been) rendered untenantable as a result of such taking, Lessor may terminate this Agreement by giving Tenant a written notice of termination, and this Agreement shall terminate at the time specified in the notice (which shall not be less than thirty (30) days after the date of such notice).

X. DEFAULT

- A. Tenant's Default. The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute a default by Tenant under this Agreement unless cured within thirty (30) days following written notice of such violation from lessor: (i) Tenant fails to timely pay any installment of rent or any additional rent; (ii) Tenant violates any requirement under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, abandonment of the Premises); (iii) Tenant assigns or encumbers any right in this Agreement, delegates any performance hereunder, or subleases any part of the Premises (except as expressly permitted in this Agreement); (iv) Tenant files a petition in bankruptcy or has a petition filed against Tenant in bankruptcy, insolvency, or for reorganization or appointment of a receiver or trustee which is not dismissed within sixty (60) days; (v) Tenant petitions for or enters into an arrangement for the benefit of creditors, or suffers this Agreement to become subject to a writ of execution and such writ is not released within thirty (30) days; or (vi) Tenant defaults in constructing any improvements that are required to be constructed under this Agreement.
- B. Remedies. Upon any default by Tenant under this Agreement, Lessor may (at any time) pursue any or all remedies available to Lessor, including, but not limited to, the following: (i) perform in Tenant's stead any obligation that Tenant has failed to perform, and Tenant shall promptly pay to Lessor all costs incurred by Lessor for such performance, together with interest and service fees for any past due amounts and an administrative charge equal to ten percent (10%) of the cost incurred by Lessor (which the parties agree is a reasonable estimate of and liquidated damages for Lessor's overhead expenses associated with such performance); (ii) terminate Tenant's rights under this Agreement upon delivering a written notice of termination; and (iii) re-enter and take possession of the Premises by any lawful means (with or without terminating this Agreement). Tenant shall pay all costs and damages arising out of Tenant's default, including, but not limited to, the cost of recovering possession of the Premises, the cost of improving and reletting the Premises (including, but not limited to, any real estate broker fees or marketing costs), and

attorneys' fees and costs. Notwithstanding any termination or re-entry, Tenant shall remain liable to pay the rent and additional rent required under this Agreement for the remaining term of this Agreement, and Tenant shall pay Lessor on demand for any deficiency in the same. No action by Lessor or Lessor's Associates shall be construed as an election by Lessor to terminate this Agreement or accept any surrender of the Premises unless Lessor provides Tenant with a written notice expressly stating that Lessor has terminated this Agreement or accepted a surrender of the Premises.

C. **Default by Lessor.** Lessor shall not be in default under this Agreement unless Lessor fails to perform an obligation required of Lessor under this Agreement within thirty (30) days after written notice by Tenant to Lessor. If the nature of Lessor's obligation is such that more than thirty (30) days are reasonably required for performance or cure, Lessor shall not be in default if Lessor commences performance within such thirty (30) day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completion.

XI. EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

A. Disposition of Tenant's Improvements.

- i. Disposition If Agreement Terminates Due to Default. If this Agreement terminates before the Expiration Date due to Tenant's default, within ninety (90) days after such termination Lessor, in its sole discretion, may determine to accept title to all or any portion of the Tenant-owned improvements on the Premises. Upon Lessor accepting any such title, all of Tenant's rights, title, and interests in the same shall be terminated and title thereto shall vest in Lessor automatically. Tenant shall surrender such improvements and the Premises upon termination of the Agreement. If Lessor rejects any such title, or if such ninety-day period expires, Tenant shall (within sixty (60) days of such rejection or expiration) remove all improvements that were not accepted by Lessor at Tenant's sole expense in a manner acceptable to Lessor. If Tenant fails to remove any such improvements, Lessor may do so in any manner acceptable to Lessor.
- ii. Disposition Upon Expiration. <u>Upon termination of this Agreement on or after the Expiration Date, Lessor shall may purchase the Tenant-owned improvements on the Premises, including, but not limited to, the hangar. Lessor shall have 45 days to obtain an appraisal of the value of the improvements on the Premises. Within thirty days of the appraisal, Lessor shall may acquire the improvements from Tenant by paying to Tenant eighty percent (80%) of the appraised value of the improvements. If this Agreement expires at or after the Expiration Date, Tenant agrees that Lessor shall have (and hereby grants to Lessor) the option to assume ownership all or any of the Tenant-owned improvements on the Premises and, if such option is exercised the transfer of assets shall be self-executing provided that Tenant agrees to cooperate in the execution and delivery of any instrument necessary to perfect title in the Lessor. If Lessor does not exercise such option to assume ownership of the improvements improvements (or if when exercising such option Lessor does not acquire a Tenant-owned hangar), Tenant may either: (a) transfer its interests in the improvements owned by Tenant to a party who, prior to the Expiration Date, has been accepted by Lessor, in its sole discretion, and has entered an agreement for the Premises</u>

that is acceptable to Lessor; or (b) Tenant shall surrender the Premises and, within sixty (60) days after the Expiration Date, shall remove all improvements owned by Tenant. If Tenant fails to perform either such alternative, Lessor shall have the rights as set forth above for termination of agreement due to Tenant's default.

- B. Surrender of Premises. Upon any expiration or termination of this Agreement, Tenant, at Tenant's sole cost, shall (i) promptly and peaceably surrender to Lessor the Premises (and any improvements accepted by Lessor) "broom clean," free of debris, and in good order and condition; (ii) repair in a good and workmanlike manner any damage to the Premises or the Airport (other than that which resulted from ordinary wear and tear during the term of the lease) that arises from or relates to Tenant's use, occupancy, or operations under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, while removing any property upon expiration or termination); (iii) deliver to Lessor all keys and access credentials relating to the Airport; (iv) perform Tenant's environmental obligations as in this Agreement; and (v) remove all movable personal property and trade fixtures (including signage) that are not owned by Lessor, (except that Tenant must obtain Lessor's prior written consent to remove any such property if Tenant is in default under this Agreement or if such removal may impair the structure of any building). Upon any expiration or termination of this Agreement (which includes, but is not limited to, termination for abandonment of the Premises), all property that Tenant leaves on the Premises shall conclusively be deemed to have been abandoned and may be appropriated, sold, stored, destroyed, or otherwise disposed of by Lessor without notice to, and without any obligation to account to, Tenant or any other person (except that improvements owned by Tenant shall be as provided in Section A above) Tenant shall pay to Lessor all expenses incurred in connection with the disposition of such property in excess of any amount received by Lessor from such disposition. Tenant shall not be released from Tenant's obligations under this Agreement in connection with surrender of the Premises until Lessor has inspected the Premises and delivered to Tenant a written acceptance of such surrender.
- C. Holding Over. If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises after any expiration or termination of this Agreement, such occupancy shall not waive any default under this Agreement and Lessor may terminate such occupancy as a tenancy at will in accordance with state law. During such occupancy, Tenant shall comply with all provisions of this Agreement that are applicable to an at-will tenancy, and Tenant shall pay the following rent: ground rent at the highest rate then charged at the Airport and rent for the improvements at fair market value based on Lessor's survey of rent for similarly situated facilities at the Airport and at other similar airports (which Lessor shall determine in its sole discretion).

XII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Notices. Any notice, demand, written consent, or other communication required to be in writing under this Agreement shall be given in writing by personal delivery, express mail (postage prepaid), nationally recognized overnight courier with all fees prepaid (such as, by way of example, Federal Express or UPS), or certified mail (return receipt requested and postage prepaid) when addressed to the respective parties as follows:

If to Lessor:

City of Umatilla Attn: Airport Manager P.O. Box 2286 Umatilla, FL 32784

With required, simultaneous copy to:

Kevin Stone, City Attorney Stone & Gerken, P.A. 4850 N. Hwy 19A Mount Dora, FL 32757

If to Tenant:

Either Lessor or Tenant may change its notice address by giving written notice (as provided herein) of such change to the other party. Any notice, demand, or written consent or communication shall be deemed to have been given, and shall be effective, upon compliance with this Section and delivery to the notice address then in effect for the party to which the notice is directed; provided, however, that such delivery shall not be defeated or delayed by any refusal to accept delivery or an inability to effect delivery because of an address change that was not properly communicated.

- **B.** Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including the documents referred to herein) constitutes the entire agreement among the Parties and supersedes any prior understandings, agreements, or representations by or among the Parties, written or oral, to the extent they related in any way to the subject matter hereof.
- C. Nondiscrimination. Tenant for itself, successors in interest, and assigns (to the extent successors and assigns are permitted by this Agreement), as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that in the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property described in this Agreement for a purpose for which a U.S. Department of Transportation program or activity is extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, Tenant shall maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all other requirements imposed pursuant to 49 CFR Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation, and as said regulations may be amended. Tenant further agrees that (1) no person on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or handicap shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities or any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that Tenant shall use the Premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to 49 CFR Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation, as

- said regulations may be amended, and other applicable Laws and Regulations, and shall obtain such compliance from any sublessees or other parties holding lower tier agreements (to the extent the same are permitted by this Agreement).
- D. Force Majeure. No act or event, whether foreseen or unforeseen, shall operate to excuse Tenant from the prompt payment of rent or any other amounts required to be paid under this Agreement. If Lessor (or Tenant in connection with obligations other than payment obligations) is delayed or hindered in any performance under this Agreement by a force majeure event, such performance shall be excused to the extent so delayed or hindered during the time when such force majeure event is in effect, and such performance shall promptly occur or resume thereafter at the expense of the party so delayed or hindered. A "force majeure event" is an act or event, whether foreseen or unforeseen, that prevents a party in whole or in part from performing as provided in this Agreement, that is beyond the reasonable control of and not the fault of such party, and that such party has been unable to avoid or overcome by exercising due diligence, and may include, but is not limited to, acts of nature, war, riots, strikes, accidents, fire, and changes in law.
- E. Governing Law, Venue, and Waiver of Jury Trial. This Lease shall be governed, construed, performed, and enforced in accordance with the Laws of the State of Florida and venue shall be in Lake County. LANDLORD AND TENANT EACH WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM BROUGHT BY EITHER AGAINST THE OTHER ON ANY MATTER WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THIS LEASE, THE RELATIONSHIP OF LANDLORD AND TENANT, OR TENANT'S USE OR OCCUPANCY OF THE PREMISES. This Lease shall be governed, construed, performed, and enforced in accordance with the Laws of the State.
- **F. Attorney's Fees.** If any action is brought to recover any rent or other amount under this Agreement because of any default under this Agreement, to enforce or interpret any of the provisions of this Agreement, or for recovery of possession of the Premises, the party prevailing in such action shall be entitled to recover from the other party reasonable attorney's fees, court costs, the fees of experts and other professionals, and other costs arising from such action (including those incurred in connection with any appeal), the amount of which shall be fixed by the court and made a part of any judgment rendered. Tenant shall be responsible for all expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys fees, incurred by Lessor in any case or proceeding involving Tenant or any permitted assignee of Tenant under or related to any bankruptcy or insolvency law. The provisions of this Section shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement.
- **G.** Amendments. No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding on Lessor or Tenant unless reduced to writing and signed by both parties. No provision of this Agreement may be waived, except pursuant to a writing executed by the party against whom the waiver is sought to be enforced.
- **H. Severability.** If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect if both the economic and legal substance of the transactions that this Agreement contemplates are not affected in any manner materially adverse to any party. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to

modify this Agreement to fulfill as closely as possible the original intents and purposes of this Agreement.

- I. Confidentiality and Sunshine. Tenant acknowledges that Lessor is subject to legal requirements regarding the public disclosure of records. Tenant shall comply with such laws in connection with making any request that Lessor maintain a record confidentially, and if Tenant complies with the same Tenant shall have the right to defend any such request for confidentiality at Tenant's expense.
- **J.** Relationship of Parties. This Agreement does not create any partnership, joint venture, employment, or agency relationship between the parties. Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon any other person or entity any right, benefit, or remedy of any nature.
- **K. Provisions** Are Binding Upon Successors and Assigns. It is mutually covenanted, understood, and agreed by and between the parties hereto, that each of the provisions of this Lease shall apply to, extend to, be binding upon, and inure to the benefit or detriment of not only the parties hereto, but also the legal representatives, successors, and assigns of Lessor and Tenant hereto, and shall be deemed and treated as covenants running with the Premises during the term of this Agreement. Whenever a reference to the parties hereto is made, such reference shall be deemed to include the legal representatives, successors, and assigns of said party, the same as if in each case expressed.



WEEK OF July 14, 2020 – July 21, 2020

| | FS٦ | |
|--|-----|--|
| | | |
| | | |

| CRIMINAL CITATIONS REQUIRING COURT APPEARANCE | | | | |
|---|----------|--|--|--|
| 07/20/2020 | 11:46 am | Officers issues a criminal citation to Rebeca Belrose for Domestic violence at 35 Cayman Cir. | | |
| | | REPORTS FILED | | |
| 07/14/2020 | 6:34 pm | Officers responded to a disturbance and transported a subject to Lifestreams for involuntary evaluation. | | |
| 7/15/2020 | 6:67 am | Officers responded to 30 Bonaire Pl. in reference to a theft. | | |
| 07/15/2020 | 8;09 AM | Officers took a report of a stolen ladder at 287 S Central Ave. The case was unfounded. | | |
| 07/15/2020 | 1:17 pm | Officers responded to a traffic crash at West Ocala St. near 402 Brainard Ave. | | |
| 7/15/2020 | 2:44 pm | Officers responded to 32 Bonaire Pl. in reference to a burglary to an unlocked vehicle. | | |
| 7/15/2020 | 6:30 pm | Officers responded to a hit and run at 42404 SR 19 in Altoona. | | |
| 07/15/2020 | 8:59 pm | Officers responded to the area of CR 450 at the 1500 block in reference to a crash with injuries. | | |
| 07/16/2020 | 1:14 pm | Officers trespassed Daniel Alexander Siri of Orlando from 351 N Central Ave. | | |
| 07/16/2020 | 3:00pm | Officers escorted Daniel Alexander Siri out of the city pool at 427 N Central Ave for harassing comments. | | |
| 07/17/2020 | 7:43 am | Officers responded to a verbal dispute between neighbors at 410 Lake Shore Ave. | | |
| 07/17/2020 | 5:30 pm | Officers responded to the USB at 690 N Central Ave in reference to possible fraudulent activity. | | |
| 07/18/2020 | 4:19 am | Officers responded to the Circle K AT 42404 n Central Ave. In reference to an elderly man who had become lost and disoriented. | | |
| 07/19/2020 | 11:12pm | Officers took a report of a found wallet from Cassady St. | | |
| 07/20/2020 | 9:34 am | Officers recovered a stolen vehicle at Line St and CR 450a | | |
| 07/20/2020 | 9:36PM | Officers responded to a disturbance at the Dollar General at 16603 Lake Smith Rd. in which a customer pointed an airsoft gun at a clerk, said "just kidding" and left. | | |
| 07/21/2020 | 9:17 am | Officers responded to the USB at 690 N Central Ave to receive information on an active case. | | |
| ACTIVITY BREAKDOWN | | | | |
| ARRESTS | | 1 | | |
| DISPATCHED | CALLS | 74 | | |
| TRAFFIC STOF | PS | 3 | | |
| TRAFFIC CITATIONS ISSUED 1 | | | | |

UMATILLA POLICE DEPARTMENT PRESS RELEASE

WEEK OF July 21, 2020 – July 27, 2020

| ARRESTS | | | | | |
|---|-------|---|--|--|--|
| 7/27/2020 | 10:00 | James Pollard | Battery : Domestic Violence | | |
| | | | | | |
| | pm | | | | |
| | (| CRIMINAL CITATIO | NS REQUIRING COURT APPEARANCE | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | REPORTS FILED | | |
| 7/22/2020 | 12:56 | Officers responde | d to Harris St in reference to a report of breaking and entering | | |
| that had occurred on 7/20/2 | | | on 7/20/2020. | | |
| | am | | | | |
| 7/22/2020 9:16 Officers responded to Lakeside Ave in reference to a verba | | d to Lakeside Ave in reference to a verbal argument. | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | Pm Pm | | | | |
| 7/22/2020 | 11:00 | Officers responded to the Police Department to receive found property of mail and a cell phone. | | | |
| | am | | | | |
| 7/25/2020 | 9:54 | Officers responded to N Central Ave in reference to a miscellaneous service call | | | |
| | am | regarding a threat made in the Lake County Sheriff's Office jurisdiction. | | | |
| 7/25/2020 | 4:11 | Officers responded to the Police Department in reference to a lost or stolen | | | |
| | | purse left in the re | estroom at Umatilla Truck Stop. | | |
| | pm | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| ACTIVITY BREAKDOWN | | | | | |
| ARRESTS | | | 1 | | |
| DISPATCHED CALLS | | | 60 | | |
| TRAFFIC STOP | S | _ | 2 | | |
| TRAFFIC CITATIONS ISSUED 0 | | | | | |